
AD HOC TRANSITION COMMITTEE MINUTES

August 28, 2014

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Rausch at 3:30 p.m.

Members Present: J.R. Rausch, Henk Berbee, Tracy Richardson, Terry Emery for 
Mayor Gore, Jenny Chavarria, Tara Maine for Brian Dostanko

Others Present: Xenia City Manager Brent Merriman, Sidney Law Director Jeff Amick, 
Tim Aslaner, Kris Jones

Approval of Minutes: The minutes from the meeting on August 21, 2014 were approved
as written

Agenda:

Presentations on Council-City Manager Form of Government from Visiting 
Community Leaders:  Mr. Rausch introduced all committee members to Mr. Merriman 
and Mr. Amick.

Mr. Rausch explained how and why the Ad Hoc Transition Committee was formed.  He 
said the committee started in April/May of 2014 and we would like to have the proposed 
new rules/procedures, changes, responsibilities before Council by January.  There are 
many communities that are functioning well, working under the Council-Manager form 
of government such as Xenia and Sidney, so it made sense to the committee to invite 
these municipalities for conversations regarding their best practices.

Question and Answer Period:  A list of questions were prepared by the committee 
members and sent to Mr. Merriman and Mr. Amick in advance to review and prepare 
before the August 28, 2014 meeting and are attached to these minutes.

Leading in to the first question, Mr. Rausch explained the recent passing of Council Clerk
Connie Patterson to Mr. Merriman and Mr. Amick.  Mr. Rausch stated that Mrs. 
Patterson’s recent passing and the future change in form of government led to the first 
question.  In 2016, is the Clerk of Council a position something that could potentially be 
a shared position as it’s temporarily being done now, or does Council need our own 
clerk?

Mr. Merriman stated Xenia has currently has a full time Clerk of Council and a couple of 
part-time staff members that help take notes and minutes at the various boards and 
commissions. The position use to be a duo role with the Finance Director and the Clerk 
of Council being combined into one. The positions were split due to the increase in work 
with the Finance Director. Clerk of Council is a fulltime position that is responsible for 
maintain all of the official contracts, maintaining the minutes and actions of council, 
boards and commission. She does provide some support to the Finance Department. Mr. 



Aslaner asked she is like a City Clerk? Mr. Merriman replied yes. Mrs. Richardson asked 
if you have a clerk in support of yourself and the Mayor? Mr. Merriman stated that no 
one on council has their own support staff. He has a fulltime assistant.  His assistant and 
the City Clerk do provide a lot of the support functions, travel arrangements or letters to 
be sent out.  

Mr. Amick stated that in Sidney we do have a full time Clerk. She lends support services 
to the City Manager (arranges travel for all council and City Manager) she also the 
designated Public Records person, she is certified clerk and special training regarding 
public records.  The City Manager does not have an assistant, he uses the Clerk when 
needed. Sidney meets three times a month.

Mr. Rausch asked what is Sidney's population? Mr. Amick responded around 22, then 
Mr. Rausch asked what is Xenia's population? Mr. Merriman responded around 26. 

Mr. Rausch asked what the fulltime staff size is for both Cities. Mr. Merriman responded 
around 200, Mr. Amick replied about 125-130.

Mr. Rausch asked about the hiring process for the City Manager and how involved was 
City Council or did you hire search firms to find applicants?   Mr. Merriman said he has 
just been City Manager since February and was Assistant City Manager for seven-eight 
years. Council approached him and started the process. They have used a company and 
posted on ICMA, OCMA, and Council was pretty intimately involved in the review of 
the materials lead by the Human Resources Director and they drew upon the Finance 
Director and Law Director to provide the input. Council was responsible the interview 
process, which was around 2-3 rounds of interviews.   

Mr. Amick stated in Sidney, we did not hire a search firm. We did do the posting like 
Xenia did on ICMA and OCMA. Council was the person that did the interviews, hired 
and anything relevant to this. It was a long process. Council is very hands on. Everything 
that was done for this process except for the background check was done by Council. 
Council even went to the towns the some of candidates were from and did some 
interviewing. 

Ms. Chavarria asked if they had any smaller committees, did they break in to 
Administration Committees. Mr. Amick stated not in Sidney, Mr. Merriman stated that 
Xenia did when it came time to negotiating the contract of the City Manger.

Mr. Rausch asked how frequently is the City Manager evaluated, and is that by the entire 
council or is that a subcommittee?  Mr. Merriman stated that his advice would be as your 
appointing someone and establishing expectations make sure you make them clear, 
concise, and measureable. Looking at contractual provisions for pay raises. 

Mr. Amick said that every year in October council starts to meet and discuss any issues 
that they may have with their three employees, not just the City Manager. They will meet 
with the employees in November to give them the ups and downs. There are no goals, but



more of what the expectations are. It is a very detailed process, you may be in there for 
one if not two meetings, and then there is a written evaluation given in November, which 
is when your salaries will be discussed, because each appointment is only for one year. 

Mr. Berbee asked if those are all done in executive session. Mr. Amick answered yes, and
it is at least a three meeting process, and more than one person can be evaluated in one 
meeting. 

Mrs. Richardson asked what the dynamics are during those Executive Sessions. Mr. 
Amick stated that during the session it is primarily the Mayor who is designated as the 
spokes person.

Mr. Berbee asked if Xenia and Sidney's council consist of seven members and are they 
political, non-political or at large or ward? Mr. Amick stated that we four ward and three 
at large. Mr. Merriman said by Charter, we are seven members non-political, at large; we 
have a Mayor who is voted as the ceremony leader, same rights as council. Annually, 
they will elect from the members a President and Vice-President of Council. President of 
Council serves as the de-facto leader of council in terms of establishing an agenda and 
presiding over the meetings. 

Mr. Berbee asked if the Mayor is a councilman? Mr. Merriman stated that the Mayor is a 
councilman has full voting privileges, and serves as the ceremonial leader for the 
community can marry people, and in council the Mayor is just like any other council 
member. Mr. Berbee stated that the Mayor cannot be the President of Council. Mr. 
Merriman replied those are two different positions.

Mr. Aslaner stated is he the eighth council member? Mr. Merriman stated that there are 
seven total and then out of the six council members and the Mayor's is the seventh. From 
among those six eligible they will elect as a group including the Mayor a council 
president and vice president. 

Mr. Amick stated that Sidney is different, we have seven elected, and then within that 
rank every two years council will elect a Mayor, and they elect a pro-tem. By their 
Charter, there is no President of Council, the Mayor is responsible for running the 
meetings, and performing the functions that the President of Council would.

Mr. Rausch asked about communication between Council and City Manager; council and
other department heads; council and other employees; is it allowed, and how far down the
chain of command is allowed? Mr. Merriman said Xenia's Charter prohibits council 
members from involving themselves in operations. The expectation has evolved that if 
there are issues with staff performance with operations or policies you go right to the City
Manager, Law Director or Finance Director. Mr. Merriman has loosen that a little bit, if a
council member has a concern about traffic issue on a street talk to the engineer, but with 
respect to any personnel, policy or major operational issues, it should come to the City 
Manager. 



Mr. Amick stated that they do not have Charter guidelines but we are operating the same 
way Xenia does. He discussed this with the City Manager in anticipation of coming here, 
and the City Manager states that he has no problems at all if a council person wearing a 
hat of resident of Marysville, saw a major pothole on First Street, then call the person 
who deals with that issue. They are allowed to have contact with anyone as long as it is 
the same contacts any resident could have, but once it gets into policy or discipline it 
goes just to the City Manager. 

Mr. Berbee asked if the City Manager is on vacation or out of town, how far down does 
the succession line go? Mr. Merriman stated (in their structure it; the City Manager is 
considered the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Budget Officer; the Finance Director is
the Chief Finance Officer which is responsible for investments, accounting responsibility 
of the City, income tax collection, accounts billable and accounts receivable, most all of 
the other service fall under City Manager. Among their senior staff Public Safety Chief, 
by Charter the City Manager is considered the Public Safety Director, which under Ohio 
Law grants certain responsibilities and rights), by Xenia's Charter, the Assistant City 
Manager becomes the interim City Manager, if it is an extended absence or termination;
Council reserves the right to institutes an acting City Manager.  

Mr. Amick stated in Sidney the City Manager is the appointing authority for everyone 
except for the Clerk and Law Director. Everyone reports to the City Manager except for 
those two positions, there is an Assistant City Manager/ Utilities Director. It would 
probably be the person under the Assistant City Manager.

Mr. Rausch asked about the committee structure, standing committees. Mr. Merriman 
said that by Code and Charter we have the following committees; Planning and Zoning 
Commission, Zoning Appeals Board, County Planning Commission, Regional Planning 
Commission, Traffic Commission, Board for Recreational Arts and Culture, Loan and 
Trust Committee, and recently added Economic Development Committee and an Ad Hoc
Committee that will probably become permanent. They have entertained the idea of 
looking at a Public Safety Committee and Utilities Committee. Each of those committees 
are chaired by a member of council. By Charter, the Council President determines the 
members of those with the exception of Zoning Appeals Board the Mayor is established 
as the chairperson for that committee.  

Mr. Amick stated things are done differently in Sidney. When he worked in Greenville, 
there were committees within the council itself (finance committee, law committee, 
personnel committee) any of those matters that would normally come before council they
would usually passes through committees first for recommendation. In Sidney, it is 
different, there are a lot of committees in place, but most of them are staffed by residence
of the City, the only ones that there are representatives of council on are Airport Advisory
Committee, Paint the Town Committee (give money to people to paint their homes) the 
Downtown Design and Enterprise Committee, otherwise the normal committees are not 
staffed by council nor do they have subcommittees (finance committee) because all of 
that is done with council as a whole. 



Mr. Emery asked Mr. Amick to clarify this; because he understands that on off council 
weeks council meets as a group with some of these committees? Mr. Amick said on an as
needed basis. There is a lot of committee work that is done by the community 
representative who are pointed by the council. 

Mrs. Richardson said that she thinks about seven people trying to gather consensus in 
some kind of meaningful way. Mr. Amick gave an example that the Finance, when 
Sidney is dealing with its finance matters, the Finance Officer and City manager have 
gotten together and had meetings with staff over budgetary things start in July and the 
Finance Director and City Manager are having appointments with Department heads, the 
second meeting in August the budget is presented to council. Council will have the 
opportunity as a whole to discuss this, before it will be adopted the first week of 
December. Getting consensus is difficult with seven people, but they are all getting to ask
questions, he has not seen any problems with reaching a consensus, not every vote will be
7-0 vote. 

Mr. Rausch stated Sidney's work sessions are the first Monday of every month, and then 
the two regularly scheduled monthly meetings. Mr. Amick added as well as an annual 
retreat, which is basically a goal setting time for the upcoming year. Mr. Rausch asked if 
the annual retreat is off-site and how long? Mr. Amick stated that it is off-site to the 
extent that it is not conducted at City Hall, before the budget crunch, he said they did go 
to various retreat centers, but the last few have been conducted at one of the other 
buildings with a large conference room and it is an all day affair. Mr. Rausch asked if it is 
an open meeting?  Mr. Amick stated yes it is an open meeting, the public is able to be 
there but unable to participate. The last retreat there was a facilitator there to help identify
the key problems. Mr. Rausch asked if the press shows up? Mr. Amick stated they were 
notified but they were not there. 

Mr. Merriman said Xenia does not do any kind of annual retreat, but he has talked about 
starting one. It is important for Executive Staff to sit and develop goals.

Mr. Berbee about the finance committee, is that a subcommittee? Mr. Merriman stated 
that it is an Ad Hoc Committee that covers the finances and the budget, and will meet to 
discuss items. 

Mr. Merriman added that the work sessions, he finds valuable, they do them as needed or 
requested, that is the time they go into depth with the policies (example the storm water is
underfunded, how they can get additional funding). Work Sessions are held a couple 
hours prior to the normal meetings. Xenia has been doing work sessions twice a month. 

Mrs. Richardson said that it sounds efficient, it just makes sense; you are not trying to 
communicate with seven different people on different issues. It allows the opportunity for
those seven to interact with each other at time.  Mr. Merriman stated specifically when 
you focus on certain topics. Mr. Amick stated that the work sessions in Sidney are done 
so you do not get bogged down with lot of stuff during the regular session. It makes the 
regular council meetings not to long. The work sessions helps to figure out what council 



wants to deal with. The Council will make assignments to the Executive Staff on what 
they want to hear. 

Mr. Aslaner asked Mr. Amick, if the work sessions are regularly scheduled, are in the 
rules of procedure? Mr. Amick replied they are in the Charter and it is the first Monday 
of every month. Mr. Aslaner stated that you have work session defined and legislation is 
not defined, no voting and you go into Executive Session for certain topics. Mr. Amick 
stated it is on the agenda that we are going into Executive Session on this. These are open
meetings where the public can attend but is not able to participate. Mr. Aslaner asked is 
an agenda made out for each meeting? Mr. Amick replied yes. 

Mr. Berbee asked Mr. Merriman, you work with seven different individuals, are some in 
your office weekly/daily, and some you only see during council meeting, how is that 
diversity and what do you prefer? Mr. Merriman said council members all have city 
issued smart phones and/or Ipad, and emails are pretty effective form of communication 
all council members. If he is conveying information on a specific topic in detail that it is 
not going to just one council member but it is going to all seven. He prepares a council 
brief. Once a week, he sends out an email as confidential as that can be, where he will go 
into a little more in-depth with major policy concerns and project updates, he would 
rather council have more information then they need so he does not get blindsided by 
something someone heard from a resident. He finds that to be effective. 

Mr. Amick said that the City Manager puts out a weekly or bi-weekly report, which 
brings council up to on any topics that might have come in, that is not of a confidential 
nature. This is meant to keep council up to date so that they can discuss information with 
residents when they are out in the community. 

Mr. Rausch asked do you and the City Manager give a report every council meeting, 
Administrative report or would these take that place. Mr. Amick stated that in their 
meetings it is called Senior Directors Comments, where they can make any comments or 
reports that are not on the regular agenda, where the City Manager can report as well. 

Mr. Rausch asked if all of the senior staff can do that, all the department heads could do 
that? Mr. Amick said no, what is required at the regular meetings, is all of the senior 
staff/department heads are there, and can speak.  In the workshop, if there is a report 
given on a certain topic, that department head will speak, but all the department heads are
not required to be there. 

Mr. Merriman said they publish a monthly report in addition to the other communications
he sends out to council members.  Under the City Managers Report on the Council 
Agenda, he will try to give updates on any pressing issues, but there is no typical 
expectation for a full report of the happenings of the community. 

Mr. Rausch said that knowing that our new charter will be in place in 2016, what advice 
would you have for us? 



Mr. Merriman said to establish clear and measureable performance objectives, this is 
something he has struggled with. Any issues relative to performance of staff and 
operational concerns, should be discussed privately, in the middle of the council meeting 
is not the place to do that, it is not becoming of the City or the Council member who 
mentions it and it does not help the morale of the staff. 

Mr. Amick said one of the many things that the Clerk does is in anticipation of the 
Monday meetings, she gets all the information out to everyone by Friday, if not 
Thursday. Staff needs to prepare a council discussion summary or council action 
summary if it is supporting an ordinance or resolution that is going to be voted on. All 
this information is sent to the council members well before the meeting. Try to get the 
information out prior to the meeting. 

Mr. Merriman agreed, and added that having a really strong reporting tool as part of your 
agenda packet is important. It is also good practice to have any dialogue before the 
meeting if there is a conflict on an issue. 

Mr. Berbee said that our City Administrator talks to the Mayor frequently, and our 
Administration sets the Council Agenda, do you talk with your person prior to the council
meeting and go over what you put on the agenda. 

Mr. Merriman said by Charter the Council President is responsible for approving the 
agenda, usually himself, Finance Director, and City Clerk will meet or a have a phone 
conference with the Council President and go over what the agenda is. Then he can sign 
off on the agenda or ask questions about items on the agenda. After that meeting the 
agenda is published shortly after. 

Mr. Amick said Sidney has a 90 day calendar, that staff can look at it is things that are 
coming up on a routine basis. Basically, every Tuesday, Senior Staff gets together after 
the Council meeting or the workshop and put on the 90 day Agenda anything that 
Council has directed us to look into. 

Mrs. Richardson asked when we make the discussion to spend council appropriated 
funds; Council had its own budget?  When you have expenditures for funds for council, 
who decides that or who manages it? How is that done, through the clerk? 

Mr. Amick stated that part of the budget process, council is going to have to justify the 
expenses within there own group. When a single council person is requesting to go 
somewhere, and the expenditure is within what was discussed at the budget meetings and 
there are available funds, the request is made to the Clerk and then the paperwork is 
submitted to the Finance Department and it is done. 

Mr. Merriman said the City Manager's office will work with the Council to establish 
within their budget (they have cost center for Council Affairs/Council Expenditures) they
will discuss who will be attending the conference, and so the funds are available. As 
funds would be incurred, example if a council member has a travel expense 



reimbursement that would be submitted back to the Finance Director (as with any 
expense) they would sign off as to the availability of funds; the City Manager will sign 
off to approve it, and then the President of Council, (as with any council expenses) would
countersign to approve it from the council perspective.  

Mr. Aslaner asked are items that get placed on the regularly scheduled meeting agendas, 
do not go through the work sessions? 

Mr. Amick said that yes, a lot of the resolutions that are pre-wrote. Mr. Aslaner stated not
everything has to be vented through the work session? Mr. Amick replied the work 
sessions are for items that will have a long term impact on the community and they want 
a lot of opportunity to discuss it. 

Mr. Aslaner said that we have subcommittees sometimes there will be an agenda items on
the regularly scheduled meeting, say its second reading and there will be impasse, 
someone will have a tangential idea and Council does not know what to do with it so they
will refer it back to the "Public Affairs Committee", does that happen in Sidney when a 
regularly scheduled item that never went through the work session process gets tabled 
and then referred to a work session? 

Mr. Amick said he can only remember one time that happened; the item was table and 
sent back for more study not by a sub committee but by our community works person. 

Mrs. Richardson said that the committee work has her thinking. She thinks that the 
tendency is to go to the committee, let the committee do the work, and then bring it to 
council, but what she hears with Sidney, you have everyone in council looking at the 
issue in detail in a work session. 

Mr. Amick said that the committee is Senior Staff, the council feels that they are not 
going to put their finger prints on something that has to do with pool regulations, building
codes because they do not know enough about them, but there is Senior Staff that does 
know about it, so we want to hear a report from Senior Staff why we should require these
blue swimming pools to be grounded and come back to him as a whole, rather than 
putting it into the hands of three or four members of council who may not have that 
specialized knowledge.  

Mrs. Richardson said with our committees they are members of council and subject 
matter experts, so those committees are just working in a smaller group of people who are
subject matter experts and represent the council. They seem to hammer out the details 
and bring it to council. Mr. Amick stated that we are pretty much doing the same thing, 
Mrs. Richardson said with just more people. Mr. Amick said that it has to be a very 
define report or things will not go well. 

Mrs. Richardson said in Xenia it is different. Mr. Merriman said there is quite a bit of 
trust placed in the Senior Staff in terms of venting a lot of the both political as well as 
functional issues with items. By the time something comes back to the full council for 



discussion. Generally, most details have been covered it more of the political decision 
than functional things that are being debated. 

Mr. Rausch said right now we have the budget and the administration. The Mayor is in 
charge of the administration. After the change in 2016, we will now have oversight over 
the administration, how does our role change without having our thumb on Mr. Emery 
and for Mr. Emery to not go out and do what ever he wants and we not know about it 
until after the fact. 

Mr. Merriman said under this model know you are more responsible as a council now for 
whether or not the flower bed is weeded, for whether or not there are pot holes, and you 
will see those complaints coming in. It is now councils' responsibility to relay those 
complaints to the appropriate people. 

Mrs. Richardson said that must be very challenging for you as the City Manager to work 
with seven individuals. 

Mr. Merriman said that it is even more difficult in Xenia because not only does he have 
the seven council members also a separate Finance Director and Law Director,(Mrs. 
Richardson added who do not work for you) the vast majority of the services that are 
visible to the public, they see him responsible for  those services. There are occasions 
where he is not only battling the Council but might be battling finance and law as well. 

Mr. Emery asked Mr. Merriman, when you encounter a council member that maybe 
crossing the line on a particular topic, do you go to the President of Council to express 
some of those concerns or do you handle it or how does that work? 

Mr. Merriman said that they had a council member who did not only cross the line but 
almost crossed a legal line. At one time the council members were given badges because 
of the 1974 tornado; a lot of officials from the City couldn't get back into the City in the 
aftermath of that event so one of the ways to over come that was to provide badges for 
key officials. This person had a badge and he had some kids cut him off on a local street, 
he waived the badge and tried to get these kids to pull over. He was impersonating an 
officer, and word got back through a police report. Essentially, what we do then is work 
with the President of Council. It was with some of that type of behavior a code of conduct
for council was established. There is a protocol in place where if lines are crossed the 
appointing authorities have the ability to report that and request some type of an action 
back from Council. 

Mr. Rausch said that right now, we have access to anyone we want, we do run some 
things through Mr. Emery, obviously to keep that we also have a responsibility to not 
abuse it as well. 

Mr. Merriman agreed that open communication is good and not having to burden the City
Manager with every little question and detail it is nice to have that flexibility as long as it 
is not abused. The City Manager has to be able to trust his staff and there are occasional 



conflicts, and you do not want a staff member communicating with the council member 
taking a counter policy decision, and under cutting the City Manager's position. 

Mr. Rausch said that the seven members that are on council are really good people, but 
you may end up with someone who has their own agenda. 

Mr. Merriman added that Xenia is a 5-2 dynamic right now. Mr. Amick said that we have
a council person who was talking to the police department because he did not like the 
way something was being done. The City Manager pulled that council member aside and 
said to please don't do that it is crossing a line and give an explanation why. If that had 
not been a strong City Manager then there would have been an executive session and all 
seven council members would have been there and had their say.

Mr. Rausch said you have been both types of governments, do you think there is more 
freedom of information between a City Manager and Council, then maybe between a 
Mayor who is an elected official, may feel like it is his responsibility. 

Mr. Amick stated that the lines of communication are more defined and better 
implemented in the City Manager type situation.  There is less likelihood that there will 
be this free wheeling kind of stuff going on because it can cause the City Manager 
problems or employees' problems. It makes those lines of communication a lot more 
definable. 

Mr. Merriman said there is a good reason why many communities this size are moving to 
the City Manager form of government is because it is a strong form of local government. 
It is very communication oriented to provide some degree of political impartiality and 
professional management with the City Manager. 

Mr. Amick said that he was the Law Director for the last 30 years in Greenville, every 
once in a while it would come up that we need to adopt a Charter and do things a lot 
differently then the statutory format. He was one of the strongest advocates against that. 
Now that he has been in Sidney for two and half years to see how much better it can 
work. One of the goals he is going to do, once he has been away from Greenville for a 
while he is going to go back and suggest that they go to that form of government because 
it is better.  

Adjournment: Mr. Rausch adjourned the meeting at 5:00 pm.


